Optimization of Pseudo Random Binary Sequence (PRBS) combination for Online Modeling of MIMO Ill-conditioned System

by

Khor Wooi Kin 14930

A project dissertation submitted to the Electrical and Electronic Engineering Programme Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS in partial fulfillment of the requirement for the BACHELOR OF ENGINEERING (Hons) (ELECTRICAL AND ELECTRONIC) JANUARY 2015

UNIVERSITI TEKNOLOGI PETRONAS 32610, BANDAR SERI ISKANDAR, PERAK DARUL RIDZUAN

Contents

Abstract.		5
Chapter1:	Introduction	б
1.1	Background of Studies	6
1.2	Problem Statement	7
1.3	Objective	7
1.4	Scope of Study	7
Chapter 2	: Literature Review	8
Chapter 3	: Methodology and Project Work	2
3.1 N	Iethodology and Project Activities 12	2
3.1.1	Plant Setup and Understanding of Manual	2
3.1.2	MATLAB Simulink Interfacing with Process Plant	4
3.1.3	Determination of Steady-State Gain Matrix and Transfer function of Plant 1	5
3.1.4	Verification of ill-Condition properties	7
3.1.6	Apply of excitation signal into simulation software1	7
3.1.7	Data process and performance analysis	8
3.1.8	Implementation in real process plant	0
3.2 K	ey Project Milestone	1
Chapter 4	: Result and Discussion	3
4.1 E	Determination of Steady-state gain matrix	3
4.2 D	Design of input excitation signal formed by different combination of PRBS	7
4.3 A	pplication and Performance analysis of input excitation signal	8
4.4 I	nplementation in real Air Pilot Plant Process	0
4.5 F	uture Work	3
Chapter 5	: Conclusion and Recommendation	5
Reference	es	6
Appendix		0

Table of Figures

Figure 1: Air Pilot Plant that is used for system identification
Figure 2: PCV 212
Figure 3: PCV 202
Figure 4: PT 212
Figure 5: PT 202
Figure 6: Control Diagram of 2 x 2 MIMO process 14
Figure 7: MATLAB Simulink interference with the plant process
Figure 8: Experiment 1 (PCV 202: 30% → 60% and PCV 212: 45%)
Figure 9: Experiment 2 (PCV 202: 45% and PCV 212: 30% →60%)
Figure 10: setup of virtual plant in MATLAB Simulink platform
Figure 11: The role of modeling in complete loop of process
Figure 12: Modeling based on measured input-output data 19
Figure 13: Project Key Milestone
Figure 14: PT202: Graph of Pressure (kPa) versus Time (s)
Figure 15 : PT212: Graph of Pressure (kPa) versus Time (s)
Figure 16: PT202: Graph of Pressure (kPa) versus Time (s)
Figure 17: PT212: Graph of Pressure (kPa) versus Time (s)
Figure 18: original PRBS signal and generated PRBS signal with different correlation coefficient value
Figure 19: The Bode plot analysis of different models for simulated open loop operation 28
Figure 20: Fit percentage analysis for combination 1 – combination 5 for simulated open loop operation
Figure 21: The Bode plot analysis of different models after implementation into real process plant
Figure 22: Fit percentage analysis for combination 1 – combination 5 after implementation into real plant process
Figure 23: the closed loop MATLAB Simulink setup for virtual plant process
Figure 24: The Bode plot analysis of different models after implementation into real process plant

Table of Tables

Table 1: Level of interaction for different value of λ	10
Table 2: Conclusion of each experiment on system identification	11
Table 3: Project Key milestone and the expected date of Completion 2	21
Table 4: The design of step response experiment of the system	23
Table 5: Labeling for Application of PRBS combinations with different correlation coefficient 2	28
Table 6: fit percentage analysis for all combinations of test signal for simulated open loop operation.	29
Table 7: fit percentage analysis for all combinations of test signal for simulated open loop operation.	31
Table 8: the PID controller's coefficient value for closed loop operation	34

Abstract

This paper aims to improve the performance of system identification based on optimization of Pseudo Random Binary Sequence (PRBS) excitation signal combination for Multiple-Input Multiple Output (MIMO) Ill-Conditioned system. Ill-conditioned system is defined as system that is formed by various variables and the level of interaction between all the variables is high. It is found that in the case of ill-conditioned system, the design of PRBS combination as excitation signal will affect the performance of system identification. The experimental subject of this paper is the air pilot plant that is located in Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS (UTP). Empirical modeling method is first used to obtain the steady gain matrix of the system, followed by the transfer function based on the time constant of the system. A process will be created on simulation based on the transfer function obtained. High correlated, moderate correlated and un-correlated set of PRBS will be used as excitation signal for system identification. The test signal combination of PRBS will be examined by using Bode plot and fit percentage. The result shows that the lower the correlation, the better the modeling performance for the operation in both simulated and real process environment.

Chapter1: Introduction

1.1 Background of Studies

Controller design is the key feature in control system, the design can only be good if enough information about the process or system is available. This is where the system identification works, in order to know the plant characteristic and behavior in details by using input-output data of the plant. However, according to Pajonk (2009) and Kumar et.al (1986), normal steady routine of input-output data is not critical enough to actually approximate the plant behavior, an application of excitations signal as an input to the system is needed [1] [2]. Pseudo Random Binary Sequence (PRBS) is one of the most common test signal used in the industry.

There are many types of process system in the industries and the requirement for excitation signal is different for each type of process system. In this paper, our focus is put on the Multiple-Input Multiple-output (MIMO) ill conditioned plant. Ill-conditioned process plant is defined as the process plant that has high level of interaction between all the variables (inputs and outputs). The performance of system identification is not stable by using random sets of input test signal, it is interesting to investigate the relationship between excitation signals that can affect the performance of system identification.

Our main task in this paper is to design a set of input test signal that is able to carry out the best performance of system identification. The result will then be implemented in the real process plant, which is the air pilot plant that is located in Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS. This is one of the main motivation of this paper as many research have proved performance of test signals solely in simulation software platform, but not tested with the real plant design as the operator of plant rather not to disturb the daily operation.

With the principle of control engineering, reference of literature review and the case study of air pilot plant, conclusion about the type of combination of input signals that can improve system identification of ill-conditioned plant is expected.

1.2 Problem Statement

System identification is crucial in the industry as it helps the operator to understand the behavior and the characteristic of the process plant. For a Multiple-Input Multiple-Output (MIMO) process, a set of excitation signal is required in order to carry out the system identification. Often, the excitation signals are designed individually and randomly selected to form a set of excitation signal. However, researches show that certain undefined combination of excitation signals can affect the performance of system identification. It is interesting to investigate and define the actual relationship between excitation signals so that the performance of system identification can be improved and the controller becomes more reliable.

1.3 Objective

By referring to the previous section of background and problem statement, the objectives of this paper are summarized and listed as below:

- To define and design the best combination of excitation test signals that can improve and stabilize the performance of system identification in MIMO ill-conditioned system. Virtual Process is built on MATLAB Simulink based on Air Pilot Plant Model and the performance of excitation test signal sets are examined based on their real time response and frequency response.
- To implement and validate the result from simulation into real process plant that has MIMO and ill-conditioned properties which is the air pilot plant located in Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS. Similar to the simulation procedure, performance of excitation test signal sets are examined based on their real time response and frequency response.

1.4 Scope of Study

It is important to limit the scope of study as the knowledge of System Identification is too huge. This project will cover just the system identification based on excitation signal, more specifically PRBS. The objective is to determine how the test signal combination affects the performance of identifying a MIMO ill-conditioned process. If there is extra time, the experiment will be repeated but in closed-loop operation.

Chapter 2: Literature Review

According to Grevers (2005), almost 75% of the budget for control related project is used to develop the plant model [3]. Thus, it is vital to improve the effectiveness of system identification for modeling the plant in order to be cost effective. System identification is first found in 1960s, and becoming more and more popular in the last 2 decades [2] [4]. This chapter aims to analysis the past research and experiments, learn from the past experience in conducting relevant system identification. A brief introduction of different type of system identification will first be introduced, followed by two approaches to define the interaction of multi-variable in the system, the next section will present the analysis and comparison of few past researches and experiment, and ends with a brief conclusion of the chapter.

According to Prof. Bemporad A. (2010), there are three types of system identification models which are white box, grey box and black box [5]. Further reference to Ljung (1987), white-box model refers to model which the structure is fully based on first principle, while the structure of grey-box is partially known from first principle and the structure as well as parameters and last, the black-box model is completely unknown and solely based on the input-output data [6]. In this paper, the model is defined as black-box as the estimation of structure and parameters depends purely on the input-output data.

Our main focus is about Multiple-Input Multiple-Output (MIMO) system, the research direction is different with Single-Input Single-output (SISO) system as the MIMO system has multiple interactions [7]. Often, the MIMO system is related to the condition number of the system, condition number is parameter to measure the degree of interaction between the multi-variables of the system. High condition number indicates high degree of interaction between variables, if the system has condition number larger than 1, it is then defined as ill-conditioned system [8] [9] [10] [11] [12] [13]. The physical or specific explanation of ill-conditioned is simply that it is very difficult to alter or control any output from one input, as the outputs are dependent to more than one input [9]. According to Haggblom (2014) and Sadabadi and Poshtan (2009), Singular Value Decomposition (SVD) is employed to determine the condition number of a process system [11] [12] [13]. Given the MIMO system with M x M inputs and outputs as follows:

$$Y(s) = G(s)u(s) \tag{1}$$

Where Y(s) is the output of the system, u(s) is the input of the system and G(s) is the transfer function of the system, yields SVD of:

$$G(s) = W \sum V^T$$

Where Σ is the diagonal matrix when W and V are the orthogonal matrices of the transfer function. The ratio of diagonal matrix defines the condition number of the system [11] [12] [13]. Another interesting parameter that we can get from the SVD is the gain directionality of the system from the value of V. According to Skogestead *et. al.* (1988), the gain direction of the system indicates the degree of sensitivity of the system response toward the direction of input signal. The physical explanation would be how the input affects the outputs in term of direction (positive or negative) [14].

With reference to Marlin T. E. (1995), another parameter that can measure the degree of interaction between multiple variables in a MIMO system is Relative Gain Array (RGA) [15]. RGA is first proposed by Bristol (1966), it is matrix with element formed by the ratio of open-loop gain to close-loop gain, the equation of RGA is as shown [16]:

$$\lambda_{ij} = \frac{\left(\frac{\partial CV_i}{\partial MV_j}\right)_{MV_k = const, k \neq j}}{\left(\frac{\partial CV_i}{\partial MV_j}\right)_{CV_k = const, k \neq i}} = \frac{\left(\frac{\partial CV_i}{\partial MV_j}\right)_{Ot \square er \ loops \ open}}{\left(\frac{\partial CV_i}{\partial MV_j}\right)_{Ot \square er \ loops \ Close}}$$

$$3$$

With reference to the equation 3, for a 2 x 2 MIMO system, the RGA can be defined as

$$\boldsymbol{\lambda} = \begin{bmatrix} \lambda_{11} & \lambda_{12} \\ \lambda_{21} & \lambda_{22} \end{bmatrix}$$

Different range of λ indicates different level of interaction between multi variables and are summarized in the table 1 below [17]:

λ_{ij}	Level of Interaction	Paring Possibility
$\lambda_{ij} = 0$	Low interaction	Do not pair Ui and Yj
$\lambda_{ij} = 1$	High interaction	Pair Ui with Yj
$\lambda_{ij} < 0$	Low Interaction	Do not Pair Ui and Yj
$\lambda_{ij} \leq 0.5$	Moderate Interaction	Do not Pair Ui and Yj
$\lambda_{ij} > 1$	Very high Interaction	Pair Ui with Yj

Table 1: Level of interaction for different value of λ

Where U is the input with i = 1, 2, 3, ..., M and Y is the output with j = 1, 2, 3, ..., M.

Take the example study case by Caret *et. al.* (2006), the RGA value of a 3 x 3 blending unit used to stabilize the product steam temperature is [18]:

$$RGA = \begin{bmatrix} \lambda_{11} & \lambda_{12} & \lambda_{13} \\ \lambda_{21} & \lambda_{22} & \lambda_{23} \\ \lambda_{31} & \lambda_{32} & \lambda_{33} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{2}{13} & \frac{4}{13} & \frac{7}{13} \\ \frac{11}{13} & \frac{5}{13} & -\frac{3}{13} \\ \mathbf{0} & \frac{4}{13} & \frac{9}{13} \end{bmatrix}$$
5

From the RGA matrix, Caret *et. al.* concludes that U_1 is used to control Y_2 as the value is nearest to 1 which is 11/13, indicating the strongest pairing interaction. The second step the author takes is to pair U_3 and Y_3 , as they have second highest RGA which is 9/13. In order to control Y_1 , the best option will be U_3 . However, it was used to control U_3 earlier, thus, the best choice is to pair U_3 with Y_2 [18]. Note that the main difference between ill-conditioned process and strongly interactive process (RGA) is that the process with strong interaction will always be ill-conditioned but not vice versa [19].

The next section will discuss and analysis about few experiments or researches that are done by other researcher in the related field. The conclusion of each experiments and researches are summarized in the table 2 below:

	References
All gain directions are needed to be excited coperly in order to identify an ill-conditioned	[10]
vstem.	
Low gain direction of process system is estimated porly by uncorrelated test signals	[11]
Modification of test signal to be rotated input	
ased on SVD can improve the performance of test	
gnal.	
Direction of output excitation affect the	[12]
erformance of the test signal.	
Gain direction has affected the process dynamics.	[13]
Ill-conditioned plant is the plant that the gain is	[14]
rongly dependent on the direction of input.	
Direction and power amplitude of test signal can	[20]
fect the performance in highly interactive system.	
Proper excitation in low-gain direction of input gnal is required by Ill-conditioned system.	[21]
	All gain directions are needed to be excited operly in order to identify an ill-conditioned stem. Low gain direction of process system is estimated orly by uncorrelated test signals Modification of test signal to be rotated input sed on SVD can improve the performance of test gnal. Direction of output excitation affect the rformance of the test signal. Gain direction has affected the process dynamics. Ill-conditioned plant is the plant that the gain is ongly dependent on the direction of input. Direction and power amplitude of test signal can fect the performance in highly interactive system. Proper excitation in low-gain direction of input gnal is required by Ill-conditioned system.

Table 2: Conclusion of eacl	n experiment on	system	identification
-----------------------------	-----------------	--------	----------------

Note that all the reference researches and experiments have extracted the steady state gain matrix and transfer function from the real plant and tested the performance of test signals only by using the simulation software, but never implement in the real plant process. However the conclusion they have drawn from the simulation are worth for reference as the explanation is based on scientific theory but not randomly made. The main conclusion after the analysis of literature review is that in an ill-conditioned plant, the performance of test-signal is strongly affected by the gain direction, if the weak gain direction can be excited, the performance of system identification can be improved drastically.

Chapter 3: Methodology and Project Work

3.1 Methodology and Project Activities

This chapter will explain and discuss about the methodology that is used to determine how the combination of excitation test signal set affect the performance of system identification. As mentioned in the previous section, the experiment will be carried out by using real plant model.

3.1.1 Plant Setup and Understanding of Manual

The chosen plant model is air pilot plant which is located in Block 23 of Universiti Teknology PETRONAS. This is a real plant model with MATLAB interfacing which enable us to implement the test signal and extract input-output data. The figure 1 shows the plant structure for this experiment.





Figure 1: Air Pilot Plant that is used for system identification

There are two Process Control Valves (PCV) which are tagged as PCV 202 and PCV 212 together with two Pressure Transmitters (PT) which are tagged as PT 202 and PT 212. The valves and pressure transmitter are as shown in the figures below.



Figure 2: PCV 212

Figure 3: PCV 202

Figure 4: PT 212

Figure 5: PT 202

The Process Control Valve (PCV) will be the input to the process while the Pressure Transmitter (PT) will display the output of the process. Since there are two PCV and two PT in this plant, it is determined as a 2x2 Multiple Input Multiple Output (MIMO) system. The block diagram of the system is illustrated in the figure 6 below, where U_1 and U_2 are the input (Process Control Valve), Y_1 and Y_2 are the output (Pressure Transmitter) and H is the transfer function of each process.

3.1.2 MATLAB Simulink Interfacing with Process Plant

Since the plant model is controlled by MATLAB interfacing, all the input-output data implementation and extraction are programmed through the MATLAB Simulink software. The MATLAB Simulink configuration is designed and drawn as shown in the figure 7 below. It is noted that the input signal block is where we will input our excitation signal and the PT 202 and PT 212 are the output data that we need in order to model the system identification. The noise of the output is filtered by using Gaussian's filter right after they are read from the PT, and before they are displayed as value in the MATLAB Simulink software.

Figure 6: Control Diagram of 2 x 2 MIMO process

Figure 7: MATLAB Simulink interference with the plant process

3.1.3 Determination of Steady-State Gain Matrix and Transfer function of Plant

After the plant is chosen and software interfacing setup configuration is ready, the next step is to determine the transfer function of the plant from the steady-state gain matrix, which is found by using the input-output data from the plant process. The equation used to obtain the steady state gain matrix is as shown below:

$$K = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\Delta y_1}{\Delta u_1} & \frac{\Delta y_1}{\Delta u_2} \\ \frac{\Delta y_2}{\Delta u_1} & \frac{\Delta y_2}{\Delta u_2} \end{bmatrix}$$
 6

Where y = output and u = input.

The Process Control Valve (PCV) and Pressure Transmitter (PT) are related to the formula above by matching the input and output where:

In order to obtain the steady-state gain matrix, two experiments are conducted. First step of experiment is to set PCV 202 to be 30% open, and PCV 212 is 45% open. The process is run for 10 minutes, when the steady-state is obtained. After 10 minutes, PCV 202 is changed from 30% to 60% opening, but PCV 212 is kept constant as 45%, this process will last for 15 minutes. Output values PT 202 and PT 212 are recorded throughout the whole experiment for 25 minutes. The second experiment is similar to the first experiment except that the role of PCV 202 and PCV 212 are exchanged with each other. The setup configuration is drawn in MATLAB Simulink interface and is shown in the figure 6. The steady state gain matrix is obtained by using equation 6 with utilization of the input-output data from the both experiment mentioned. After the steady-state gain matrix is obtained, the next step will be to determine the transfer function of the plant process. By plotting the graph for PT 202 and PT 212 values versus time, the time constant is determined at 63% of the transient state. The transfer function is then obtained by using the equation 7.

$$K = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{K_{11}}{1 + \tau_{y11}S} & \frac{K_{12}}{1 + \tau_{y12}S} \\ \frac{K_{21}}{1 + \tau_{y21}S} & \frac{K_{22}}{1 + \tau_{y22}S} \end{bmatrix}$$

$$6$$

Figure 8: Experiment 1 (PCV 202: $30\% \rightarrow 60\%$ and PCV 212: 45%)

Figure 9: Experiment 2 (PCV 202: 45% and PCV 212: $30\% \rightarrow 60\%$)

3.1.4 Verification of ill-Condition properties

After the transfer function is obtained, the next step is to determine the ill-conditioned properties of the system. By using equation as mentioned in the literature review section, the condition number is the ratio of the system diagonal matrix. Now the plant characteristic is fully understood and verified, the focus should then be put on the excitation test signal.

3.1.5 Design of Input excitation signal

In the design of excitation test signal, Pseudo Random Binary Sequence (PRBS) is first designed individually. According to Kuramoto *et. al.* (2012), the bandwidth used to design the PRBS is calculated from the system by using the equation below:

$$\omega_L = \frac{1}{B_s \tau_{Max}} \le \omega \le \frac{\alpha_S}{\tau_{Min}} = \omega_H$$
⁷

Where the τ_{Max} and τ_{Min} are the maximum and minimum time constant from the MIMO system, and B_s is used to scope the amount of information at low frequency in the test signal and \propto_s is used to ensure high frequency component is available [12]. According to Rivera *et. al* (1994), B_s and \propto_s are chosen to be 3 and 2 respectively [22], and as for the switching time, T_{Sw} can be designed by using the equation below [23].

where τ_{dom}^{L} is the lowest dominant time constant in the process. Next, different sets of PRBS test signal combination will be produced in order to excite the process plant system respectively for system identification. 4 combinations of PRBS with significant difference of correlation coefficient value will be created by shifting of the original PRBS signal. This can ensure that the magnitude and duration of the input signal will remain unchanged.

3.1.6 Apply of excitation signal into simulation software

After 4 combinations of PRBS with significant difference of correlation coefficient are ready, they will be applied to the virtual process plant that is created in the MATLAB simulink software. The virtual plant, or in other term, plant in simulation is created based on the transfer function obtained from the earlier stage of the project. One combination of PRBS will be applied at one

time and the outputs will be recorded for further analysis in the later stage of the project. The experiment will then be repeated with another combination of PRBS that has different value of correlation coefficient until all 4 combinations are applied and tested. The setup of the virtual plant with input and output is as shown in the figure below.

Figure 10: setup of virtual plant in MATLAB Simulink platform

3.1.7 Data process and performance analysis

After the data for different experiments are captured, they will be processed and examined by employing the **MATLAB System Identification Toolbox**. System Identification Toolbox is widely used to model non-linear or linear dynamic system purely based on the input-output data. It supports not only the data analysis and processing, but also the determination of suitable model structure and order, and estimate the model parameter.

Figure 11: The role of modeling in complete loop of process

The build-in function 'iddata' is first used to package all the input-output data pairs into variables containing input and output in time-domain series. The complete package of data is then imported into system identification tool. The toolbox is then used to estimate the model order. After selecting the estimated order of the model, the modeling result will then be shown in the system identification tool and exported to the workspace for further display and analysis. The layouts of the toolbox are as shown in figure 12 in sequence.

📣 Import Data							
Data Fo	rmat for Signals						
IDDATA or IDF	FRD/FRD 🔻						
						1	
Works	space Variable	A State Space Models					
Object:	data1	Model name: ss1 🥒					
Object class:	IDDATA (Time Domain)	Specify value:	4				
		Pick best value	in the range: 1:10				
Data	Information	Continuous-time	Discrete-time (Ts = 1)			
Data name:	data1						
Starting time:	1	 Model Structure Co Estimation Options 	onfiguration				
Sampling Interv	a: 1	Estimation Method:	Subspace (N4SID)		•		
	More	N4Weight:	Auto	N4Horizon: Auto			
Import	Reset	Focus:	Prediction •	•			
Close	Help	Allow unstable m	nodels	System Identification Too	ol - Untitled		
		Estimate covariar	nce	File Options Window	Help		
		Display progress			Operations		
		Initial states:	Auto	data1	< Preprocess 💌	ss1	
			Estimate		data1		
					Estimate>		
				Data Views	To To Workspace LTI Viewer	Model Views	Nonlinear ARX
				Data spectra		Model resids Frequency resp	Hamm-Wiener
				Frequency function)))))	Zeros and poles	
					Trash Model ss1 inserted. Doubl	Validation Data Noise spectrum e click on icon for text information.	

Figure 12: Modeling based on measured input-output data.

The performance of the models are evaluated by using **bode plot** and **fit percentage** of the model towards the actual parameter from transfer function obtained. By using bode plot and fit percentages, the models will be examined in both frequency domain and time domain. Bode plot represents the frequency response of the system including magnitude and phase shift by bode magnitude plot and bode phase plot [24]. On the other hand, the fit percentage is used to examine the percentage of similarity between the model and the actual transfer function, it can be employed by calling the 'compare' function in MATLAB software.

3.1.8 Implementation in real process plant

The experiment is then implemented in the real plant where the different combinations of PRBS signals will be applied towards the actual plant process via MATLAB Simulink platform and the input-output data will be collected. The data processing procedure and concept as well as the method to examine the performance of system identification for different combinations of excitation input signals are similar to the method used in simulation stage presented in section 3.1.7.

3.2 Key Project Milestone

In this sub-chapter, we will first list the project key milestone and determine the targeted completion date for each milestone. The details gantt chart and submission of documents toward FYP committee will be involved in the appendices.

Project Key Milestone	Expected Date of Completion
Plant Setup and understanding of manual (Power Up, MIMO properties)	16/11/2014
MATLAB Simulink Interfacing with process plant (Noise filter, Scaling, Valve Control, Data display)	16/11/2014
Determination of Steady-State Gain Matrix of plant from step response of system	23/11/2014
Determination of Transfer function of plant based on the time constant of system	30/11/2014
Verification of Ill-condition properties of plant (Condition number, RGA, Gain direction)	7/12/2014
Design of single PRBS test signal based on plant properties (time constant, bandwidth, period, Amplitude)	14/12/2014
Design different combination of PRBS as test signal set (correlated, uncorrelated)	31/12/2014
Implementation in simulation platform and determination of result (based on transfer function from step response)	8/2/2015
Implementation in real process plant and determination of result (different combination of PRBS)	28/2/2015

Table 2.	Ducient	Var		a m d	41	a vera a a fa d	data	af i	_	-1-4:	
Table 5.	Project	rey	innestone	anu	une o	expected	uale	01	Com	Jieuor	l

Figure 13: Project Key Milestone

Chapter 4: Result and Discussion

4.1 Determination of Steady-state gain matrix

Two experiments are carried out and summarized as below:

Exp	Variables	Event
Exp 1	PCV 202	Step input from 30% to 60%
	PCV 212	Steady gain input of 45%
Exp 2	PCV 202	Steady gain input of 45%
	PCV 212	Step input from 30% to 60%

Table 4: The design of step response experiment of the system

The result of Experiment 1 is presented in graph of Pressure versus time for each pressure transmitter (PT 202 and PT 212) as shown in the figure 11-14.

Figure 14: PT202: Graph of Pressure (kPa) versus Time (s)

Figure 15 : PT212: Graph of Pressure (kPa) versus Time (s)

Experiment 2

Figure 16: PT202: Graph of Pressure (kPa) versus Time (s)

Figure 17: PT212: Graph of Pressure (kPa) versus Time (s)

From the graph we can calculate the difference between pressure changes when the input is applied. By letting

With reference to equation 6, the steady-state gain matrix, K is yield:

$$K = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\Delta y_1}{\Delta u_1} & \frac{\Delta y_1}{\Delta u_2} \\ \frac{\Delta y_2}{\Delta u_1} & \frac{\Delta y_2}{\Delta u_2} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{2.85}{30} & \frac{-2.33}{30} \\ \frac{2.59}{30} & \frac{-2.97}{30} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0.09500 & -0.07777 \\ 0.08633 & -0.09913 \end{bmatrix}$$

The singular value decomposition for the system is calculated by using equation 2 and yields:

$$W = \begin{bmatrix} -0.1187 & -0.9929 \\ -0.9929 & 0.1187 \end{bmatrix}, \quad E = \begin{bmatrix} 0.8751 & 0 \\ 0 & 0.0660 \end{bmatrix}, \quad V = \begin{bmatrix} -0.9924 & 0.1230 \\ 0.1230 & 0.9924 \end{bmatrix}$$

By referring to the diagonal matrix E of the system, the condition number is defined as:

Condition Number
$$= \frac{0.8751}{0.0660} = 13.25$$

Which is more than 1 and thus the system is defined as ill-conditioned system. The transfer function requires the value of time constant which is defined as 63% of the total pressure difference between the applications of input signal as shown in the equation 10.

$$K = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{K_{11}}{1 + \tau_{y11}S} & \frac{K_{12}}{1 + \tau_{y12}S} \\ \frac{K_{21}}{1 + \tau_{y21}S} & \frac{K_{22}}{1 + \tau_{y22}S} \end{bmatrix}$$
10

By referring to the graph and data that are collected from the step response:

$$\tau_{y11} = (0.63x2.85) + 1.935 = 3.731$$

$$\tau_{y12} = 4.817 - (2.333x0.63) = 3.347$$

$$\tau_{y21} = (0.63x2.591) + 1.69 = 3.322$$

$$\tau_{y22} = 4.529 - (2.974x \ 0.63) = 2.655$$

With the help of the graph and some calculation, the transfer function is equal to:

$$K = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{0.09500}{1+56S} & \frac{-0.07777}{1+66S} \\ \frac{0.08633}{1+88S} & \frac{-0.09915}{1+66S} \end{bmatrix}$$

4.2 Design of input excitation signal formed by different combination of PRBS

In order to design an individual PRBS as excitation signal to the process, a few parameters are needed including length of signal, the switching time and the amplitude. The length of signal and amplitude are designed to be more than the signal that are used to extract the transfer function of the plant process which are 2000 seconds, this is to ensure more data for analysis. The amplitude is set as 30% which is the same with the opening of valve for transfer function obtaining. As for the switching time, it is designed according to equation 9 in the earlier section. The first individual PRBS signal is as shown in the figure below. By applying shifting to the original PRBS signal, 5 combinations with different correlation coefficient value compare to the original PRBS signal are created as shown in the figure.

Figure 18: original PRBS signal and generated PRBS signal with different correlation coefficient value.

4.3 Application and Performance analysis of input excitation signal

Different combinations of PRBS signals are applied to the process plant transfer function with the combination below.

Combination	Modeling label	Correlation coefficient value
1	ss1	0.0036
2	ss2	0.1972
3	ss3	0.5058
4	ss4	0.7882
5	ss5	1.0000

Table 5: Labeling for Application of PRBS combinations with different correlation coefficient

The modeling results are tested with frequency response and time response as shown below.

Figure 19: The Bode plot analysis of different models for simulated open loop operation

Figure 20: Fit percentage analysis for combination 1 – combination 5 for simulated open loop operation.

Table 6: fit percentage analysis for al	l combinations	of test signal	for simulated	open loop
	operation.			

Combination	Percentage difference w	vith original process(%)
	y 1	y 2
1	1.63	1.51
2	1.71	1.58
3	1.98	1.78
4	2.39	2.03
5	1.20	1.17

It is noticed that the time-domain performance (fit percentage) are equally good. However, the frequency-domain performance (Bode Plot) varies for each combination.

4.4 Implementation in real Air Pilot Plant Process

The different combination of input signals are then implemented into the real air pilot plant and the modeling results are as expected, where the lower the correlation level between excitation signals, the better the performance of the system identification in open loop operation. The results are as shown.

Figure 21: The Bode plot analysis of different models after implementation into real process plant.

Figure 22: Fit percentage analysis for combination 1 – combination 5 after implementation into real plant process.

Combination	Percentage difference w	vith original process(%)
	y 1	y 2
1	17.79	13.60
2	202.80	194.35
3	303.50	293.10
4	409.80	410.70
5	415.50	427.90

Table 7: fit percentage analysis for all combinations of test signal for simulated open loop operation.

According to the result above, for an ill-conditioned Multiple-Input-Multiple-Output (MIMO) process, the lower the correlation level between test signals, the better the performance of system identification in both simulated and real process environment.

The results obey the literature review where specific designed of test input signals can affect the performance of system identification. Both the positive and negative gain direction should be excited completely in order to extract the actual behavior of the plant process.

If the plant process can be modeled precisely, it will bring big positive impact to the controller design, which will further bring cost cut down, safe plant environment and less accident occurance.

4.5 Future Work

The research is then extended to the system identification in closed-loop operation. In this paper, the closed-loop operation is carried out up to the simulation result as there is time constraint for implementation into the real plant process. In fact, the methodology for system identification in closed-loop operation is very much similar to the open loop operation except that the virtual process plant is modified as followed:-

Figure 23: the closed loop MATLAB Simulink setup for virtual plant process

The PID controller is tuned based on Ziegler-Nicholas closed-loop coefficient and some trials and errors. The performance of controller is tested with a step input and the controller coefficients are fixed when the output for step input is satisfactory. The controller coefficient is implemented throughout the experiment of closed-loop operation. The controller coefficient and is as shown below:

Controller	Coeffici	ent
	Input 1	Input 2
Proportional (P)	0.5	-0.2
Integral (I)	0.5	-0.1
Derivatives (D)	0	0

Table 8: the PID controller's coefficient value for closed loop operation.

The performance of closed-loop system identification is tested in frequency response and as

Figure 24: The Bode plot analysis of different models after implementation into real process plant.

From the graph above, it is showed that the system identification in closed-loop operation has the best performance when the correlation level of input signals is high but not equal to 1. This is an interesting founding and if time is permitted, the reason and theory behind the performance of system identification closed-loop operation shall be investigated.

Chapter 5: Conclusion and Recommendation

This paper aims to improve the performance of system identification based on optimization of Pseudo Random Binary Sequence (PRBS) excitation signal combination for Multiple-Input Multiple Output (MIMO) Ill-Conditioned system. Ill-conditioned system is defined as system that is formed by various variables and the level of interaction between all the variables is high. It is found that in the case of ill-conditioned system, the design of PRBS combination as excitation signal will affect the performance of system identification. The experimental subject of this paper is the air pilot plant that is located in Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS (UTP). Empirical modeling method is first used to obtain the steady gain matrix of the system, followed by the transfer function based on the time constant of the system. A process will be created on simulation based on the transfer function obtained. High correlated, moderate correlated and un-correlated set of PRBS will be used as excitation signal for system identification. The test signal combination will also be tested in the real plant implementation. The performance of different combination of PRBS will be examined by using Bode plot and fit percentage. The result shows that the lower the correlation, the better the modeling performance for the operation in both simulated and real process environment. Both the objectives of to define and design the best combination of excitation test signals that can improve and stabilize the performance of system identification in MIMO ill-conditioned system and to implement and validate the result from real process plant that has MIMO and ill-conditioned properties which is the air pilot plant located in Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS are achieved. Future direction of investigating system identification in closed-loop operation is also involved in this paper.

References

- [1] P. Kumar and P. Varaiya, Stochastic Systems: Estimation, Identification, and Adaptive Control, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1986.
- [2] O. Pajonk, "Overview of systems identification with focus on inverse modeling," 2009.
 [Online]. Available: http://rzbl04.biblio.etc.tubs.de:8080/docportal/servlets/MCRFileNodeServlet/DocPortal_derivate_00007156/Pajonk-Overview_System_Identification_Focus_Inverse_Modeling-Updated-Version.pdf. [Accessed 18 11 2014].
- [3] M. Gevers, "Identification for control: From the early achievement to the revival of experiment design.," *Eur. J. Control*, vol. 11, no. 4-5, pp. 335- 352.
- [4] M. Gevers, "A personal View of the development of system identification: A 30-year journey through an exciting field," *Control Systems*, no. IEEE 26.6, pp. 93-105, 2006.
- [5] A. Bemporad, "Automatic Control: System Identification," 2011. [Online]. Available: http://cse.lab.imtlucca.it/~bemporad/teaching/ac/pdf/AC2-08-System_Identification.pdf. [Accessed 17 11 2014].
- [6] L. Ljung, System Identification: Theory for the user, New Jersey: Preniice Hall Inf and System Science Series, 1987.
- [7] R. D. E., ""Plant- Friendly" System Identification: A Challenge for the Process Industries,"
 [Online]. Available: http://plato.asu.edu/talks/rivera.pdf. [Accessed 17 11 2014].
- [8] L. Ljung, System Identification: Theory for the User, Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice Hall, 1999.
- [9] J. E. W. and S. Skogestad, "Inconsistencies in Dynamic Models for Ill-Conditioned Plants: with Application to Low-Order Models of Distillation Columnns," in *AIChe Annual Meeting*, Miami Beach, 1992.
- [10] R. Ghosh, H. K. E. and B. J. M., "Control-relevant input excitation for system identification of ill-conditioned n x n systems with n> 2," pp. 9382- 9387, 2014.

- [11] M. S. Sadabadi and P. J., "Identification of Ill-Conditioned Distallation Column Process using Rotated Signals as Input," *Proceedings of Internation Symposium on Advanced Control of Chemical Processes*, vol. 2, no. EPFL-CONF-186716, pp. 868-873, 2009.
- [12] K. A. S. R., V. O. R. and G. C., "Effectiveness of signal excitation design methods for illconditioned process identification," pp. 337-342, 2012.
- [13] K. E. Haggblom, "On Experiment Design for Identification of Ill-Conditioned Systems," pp. 1428-1433, 2014.
- [14] S. Skogestad and M. D. J. C. Morari, "Robust Control of Ill-Conditioned Plants: High- Purity Distallation," *IEEE Transactions On Automatic Control*, vol. 33, no. 12, pp. 1092-1105, 1988.
- [15] T. E. Marlin, "Process Interaction: the Relative Gain Array (RGA)," in *Process Control: Designing Processes and Control System for Dynamic Performance*, New York, McGraw-Hill, 1995, pp. 633- 637.
- [16] E. H. Bristol, "On a measure of interactions for multivariable process control," *IEEE Transactions Automatic Control*, no. 11, pp. 133-134, 1966.
- [17] F. G. Shenskey, "Paring Controlled and Manipulated Variables," in *Process Control Systems: Application, design and tuning*, McGraw-Hill, Inc, 1990, pp. 188-197.
- [18] J. Carey, B. V. Kuiken, C. Longcore and A. Yeung, "MIMO Control Using RGA," 7 11 2006.
 [Online]. Available: https://controls.engin.umich.edu/wiki/index.php/RGA. [Accessed 18 11 2014].
- [19] E. Jacobsen, "Identification for control of strongly interactive plants.," in *AIChe Annual Meeting*, San Francisso, 1994.
- [20] H. Lee and D. E. Rivera, "An Integrated Methodology for Plant-friendly Input Signal Design and Control-relevant estimation of highly interactive processes," in *Annual AIChe Meeting*, 2005.
- [21] J. Boling, Identification for Control with Application to Ill-conditioned systems, Turku, Finland: Abo Akademi University, 2001.

- [22] D. E. Rivera, S. V. Gaikwad and X. Chen, "CONTROL ID: A demonstration prototype for control- relevant identification," *American Control Conference (IEEE)*, vol. 2, pp. 2055- 2059, 1994.
- [23] R. D. E., "Closed-loop and Multivariable Identification," *Introduction to System Identification*, 1998.
- [24] J. D. P. E. A. G. F. Franklin, Feedback control of dynamics systems, Pretince Hall Inc, 2006.
- [25] O. Pajonk, Overview of System Identification with Focus on Inverse Modeling: Literature Review, Braunschweig: Publikationen der TU Braunschweig, 2009.
- [26] H. J. A. F. Tulleken, "Generalized Binary Noised Test-signal Concept for Improved Identification- experiment Design," *Automation*, vol. 26, no. 1, pp. 37-49, 1990.
- [27] B. S. E. Chen and T. C. Yu, "A Review of system identification in control engineering, signal processing, communication and system biology," *Journal of Biomechatronics Engineering*, vol. 1, no. 1, pp. 87-109, 2008.
- [28] M. L. Darby and M. Nikolaou, Control Engineering Practice, Houston, TX, USA: CMiD Solutions, 2012.
- [29] D. P. O' Leary and H. V., "On-line Identification of Sensory System Using Pseudorandom Binary Noise Perturbations," *Biophysical Journal*, vol. 15, pp. 505-532, 1975.
- [30] L. Ljung, System Identification: Theory for the User, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1987.
- [31] S. Nagarajalah, "System Identification," 7 July 2009. [Online]. Available: http://sstl.cee.illinois.edu/apss/files/9a_SN_UIUC_Short_Course_1.pdf. [Accessed 17 October 2014].
- [32] M. Enqvist and L. Ljung, "Estimating Nonlinear Systems in a Neighbourhood of LTIapproximants," *Division of Automation Control*, pp. 1005-1010, 2002.
- [33] A. Bemporad, "Automatic Control 2: System Identification," 2011. [Online]. Available: http://cse.lab.imtlucca.it/~bemporad/teaching/ac/pdf/AC2-08-System_Identification.pdf. [Accessed 17 October 2014].

- [34] R. B. and B. Betlem, "Design of Plant Experiment," in *Advanced Practical Process Control*, New York, Springer-Verleg, 2004, pp. 89-91.
- [35] J.-K. Chen and C.-C. Yu, "Optimal Input Design Using Generalized Binary Sequence," *Automatica*, vol. 33, no. 11, pp. 2081-2084, 1997.
- [36] L. Ljung, "Perspective on System Identification," Annual Review in Control, vol. 34, no. 1, pp. 1-12, 2010.
- [37] L. Anderson, U. Jonsson, K. H. Johansson and J. Bengtsson, "A Manual For System Identification," 1994. [Online]. Available: http://automatica.dei.unipd.it/public/Schenato/PSC/2010_2011/gruppo4-Building_termo_identification/IdentificazioneTermodinamica20072008/Biblio/Articoli/a%20 manual%20for%20system%20identification.pdf. [Accessed 17 october 2014].
- [38] C. Brosilow and B. Joseph, "Technique of Model-Based Control," in *Design of Input Signals: PRBS Signals*, New Jersey, Prentice Hall PTR, 2002, pp. 387-394.
- [39] B. Roffel and B. Betlem, "Model Identification," in *Advanced Practical Process Control*, Berlin, Springer-Verlag, 2004, pp. 57-59.
- [40] H. J. A. F. Tulleken, "Generalized Binary Noise Test-signal Concept for Improved Identification-experiment Design," *Automatica*, vol. 26, no. 1, pp. 37-49, 1990.

Appendix

```
MATLAB code to generate different PRBS with certain correlation level:
```

```
% define Prbs
prbs1 = idinput ([2000 1], 'prbs', [1, 1/78.4], [0 30]);
prbs11= prbs1(1:1200,1);
prbs2 = circshift (prbs1, 1926);%0.0036%
x1= corrcoef (prbs1, prbs2);
A1 = x1(1,2)
prbs22= prbs2(1:1200,1);
prbs3 = circshift (prbs1, 1942);%0.1972%
x2= corrcoef (prbs1, prbs3);
A2 = x2(1,2)
prbs33= prbs3(1:1200,1);
prbs4 = circshift (prbs1, 1965);%0.5058%
x3= corrcoef (prbs1, prbs4);
A3 = x3(1,2)
prbs44= prbs4(1:1200,1);
prbs5 = circshift (prbs1, 1985);%0.7882%
x4= corrcoef (prbs1, prbs5);
A4 = x4(1,2)
 prbs55= prbs5(1:1200,1);
prbs6 = circshift (prbs1, 2000 );%1%
x5= corrcoef (prbs1, prbs6);
A5 = x5(1,2)
 prbs66= prbs6(1:1200,1);
i= [1:2000];
i2=[1:1200];
PRBS1= prbs1';
PRBS1=[i;PRBS1];
PRBS2= prbs2';
PRBS2= [i;PRBS2];
 PRBS3= prbs3';
 PRBS3= [i;PRBS3];
 PRBS4= prbs4';
 PRBS4= [i;PRBS4];
 PRBS5= prbs5';
 PRBS5= [i;PRBS5];
 PRBS6= prbs6';
 PRBS6= [i;PRBS6];
```

MATLAB code to generate simulated process plant with transfer function:

```
g11= tf ([0.095], [ 56 1]);
g12= tf([-0.07777], [ 66 1]);
g21= tf([0.08633], [ 88 1]);
g22= tf([ -0.09913], [ 66 1]);
G= [ g11 g12 ; g21 g22];
```

MATLAB code to extract result from the real plant process:

```
y1= Data(2, :);
y1=y1';
y2= Data(3, :);
y2=y2';
u1= Data(4, :);
u1=u1';
u2= Data(5, :);
u2=u2';
data_1= iddata ([y1, y2],[u1,u2], 1);
```

MATLAB code to obtain the shifting value for correlated signal:

```
prbs1 = idinput ([2000 1], 'prbs', [1, 1/78.4], [0 30]);
for i= 1:2000
    u= circshift (prbs1, i);
    x= corrcoef (prbs1, u);
    A= x(1,2);
if (A>=0.7 && A<=0.8) %change this condition to generate the shift
value
    j=i
    A
end
```


Gantt Chart

Final Year Project 1:

	14	1/12/2014							
	13	15/12/2014-3							
	12	14/12/2014							
	11	1/12/2014-							
	10	30/11/2014							
	6	17/11/2014							
of week	8	6/11/2014							
No.	7	3/11/2014-1							
	9	-2/11/2014							
	8	20/10/2014							
	4	-19/10/2014							
	3	6/10/2014							
	2	-5/10/2014							
	-	22/9/2014							
	Details		Plant Setup and understanding of manual	MATLAB Simulink interfacing with process plant	Determination of Steady-State Gain Matrix of Plant	Determination of Transfer Function of Plant	Verification of III-conditioned properties of Plant	Design of Single PRBS test signal based on plant properties	Design different combination of PRBS as test signal set
	No.		1	2	3	4	5	9	7

Past
Present
Future

Final Year Project 2:

									No. of week							
No.	Details	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	6	10	11	12	13	14	15
		12/1/2015	-25/1/2015	26/1/2015	-8/2/2015	9/2/2015-2	2/2/2015	23/2/2015	5-8/3/2015	9/3/2015-2	12/3/2015	23/3/2015	-5/4/2015	6/4/2015-	19/4/2015	20-24/4/2015
-	Implementation in simulation platform and determination of result															
2	Implementation in real processing plant and determination of result															
3	Analysis and conclusion are determined															
4	Possible Future Work direction															

External Deliverable:

Final Year Project 1:

Final Year Project 2:

